
SHEEP CREEK WATER COMPANY 
REGULAR BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

November 19, 2020 ~ 6:30 PM 
SHEEP CREEK WATER COMPANY – via Zoom 

4200 Sunnyslope Rd., Phelan, CA  92371 
 
Due to the Covid-19 pandemic and required Social Distancing, The Sheep Creek Water 
Company Regular Board of Directors Meeting will be held via Zoom Meeting for Shareholder 
participation. Shareholders may access the meeting remotely with the following options.   
 
Remote Participation Information: 
 
Zoom:  https://us02web.zoom.us/j/89883881342?pwd=WjR0WTVBTFZuV2RkSVdCUXphMk1HQT09 
Meeting ID: 898 8388 1342 
Passcode: 339626 
 
One tap mobile 
+16699006833,,89883881342#,,,,,,0#,,339626# US (San Jose) 
 
Dial-In  
(669) 900-6833 
Meeting ID: 898 8388 1342 
Passcode: 339626 
 

 
AGENDA 

 
1) Open Meeting- 6:30 PM 

a. Flag Salute 
b. Invocation 

 
2) Consent Motions 

a. Minutes:  
i. Regular Board of Directors Meeting- October 15, 2020 

b. Bills:   
i. October 15, 2020 through November 19, 2020 

c. Managers’ Report: Included in Board Packet 
 

3) Open Forum/Public Comment- Under this item any member of the Board or Public 
may address the Board on any item relating to the company not listed on this agenda.  
However, the Board is prohibited under AB 240 from taking any action on an item not 
appearing on the agenda. Board president will call on each participant and at that time 
you have three (3) minutes to speak.   

 
4) Old Business 

a. System Update 
b. PPHCSD Consolidation Update 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/89883881342?pwd=WjR0WTVBTFZuV2RkSVdCUXphMk1HQT09


 
5) New Business 

a. 2021 Annual Operating Budget 
 

6) Next Scheduled Meeting 
a. December 17, 2020 via Zoom 

 
7) Adjournment 

 
 



SHEEP CREEK WATER COMPANY 
Regular Board of Directors Meeting 

October 15, 2020 ~ 6:30pm 
Sheep Creek Water Company ~ Board Room via Zoom 

4200 Sunnyslope Road, Phelan, CA  92371 
 

The Regular Board of Directors Meeting of October 15, 2020, was called to order by 
Andy Zody at 6:30 pm.  Chris Cummings led in the Pledge of Allegiance and David Nilsen led 
in the Invocation.  Mr. Zody reminded everyone present and via Zoom that the meeting was 
being recorded for accurate meeting minutes.   

 
Directors Present:  President, Andy Zody and Directors, Luanne Uhl and David Nilsen.   
Staff Present:  General Manager Chris Cummings 
Guests Present: PPHCSD Board Members Charlie Johnson and Michael Palecki, with the 
Mountaineer Progress 
 
Consent Motions 
 Minutes:  Regular Board of Directors Meeting – September 17, 2020 
 Bills:  September 17, 2020 through October 15, 2020 
 Managers' Report – October 15, 2020 
David Nilsen moved to accept the Consent Motions as presented.  Luanne Uhl seconded the 
motion.  Motion carried.   
 
Open Forum:  Under this item any member of the Board of Public may address the Board on 
any item relating to the company that is not listed on this agenda. However, the Board is 
prohibited under AV240 from taking any action on an item not appearing on the agenda.  The 
Board President will call on each participant and at that time they will have three (3) minutes to 
speak.   
 
Old Business 

a.)  System Update:  Static water levels have had an average decrease of 2 – 5 feet.  
Wells 3A and Well 5 are running daily, averaging 8 to 10 hours a day.  Water usage is averaging 
700,000 thousand gallons per day.  The Tunnel is averaging 133 gallons per minute.  Total 
pumping capacity is 1,995 gallons per minute.   
 

b.) Source Capacity Project:  The environmental is complete for Well 12 and Well 
13, along with a potential well on the Sunnyslope Property.  At this time, the wells are on a 
temporary hold due to possible consolidation with the PPHCSD.  For Sheep Creek Water 
Company to remain in compliance, Well 12 will need to be drilled and online by June 2022 and 
Well 13, by November 2022.  At this time, the Compliance order will not change until Sheep 
Creek is further along with the consolidation and there is some conformation that the 
consolidation will move forward.  
 

c.)  State Water Resource Control Board:  The State Water Board has granted Sheep 
Creek an extension for the Asset Management Plan until November 30, 2020.  As that time 
approaches an additional request will be submitted along with the progress of the plan.  IEC is 
moving forward with the Asset Management Plan.  Staff has been updating all new and 
replacement line locations and location of gate valves, check valves, and fire hydrants for the 
model to be updated.   



 
d.)  PPHCSD Consolidation Update:  Both PPHCSD and Sheep Creek Water 

Company passed resolutions to explore and possibly move forward with consolidation of the two 
water district before Sheep Creek begins drilling wells for compliance.  We have had conference 
calls with the SWRCB, DDW and DFA.  DFA has assigned a Technical Assistance Provider for 
the project.  The technical assistance will be the same process when Sheep Creek worked with 
CRWA to complete the engineering report of the system.  Our TA provider will be Sacramento 
State.  We have also requested to our TA provider to utilize IEC as the project engineer due to 
IEC doing work for both districts and having the knowledge of the two districts.  At this time we 
do not know what the funding is going to be until further along in the consolidation process.  A 
high level needs list and scope of work has been provided by both districts.  The necessity to 
purchase the water rights will be included into the cost estimate for construction, which is 
eligible to be paid for by the State for consolidation. 
 
New Business:   

a.) Bob Howard Resignation: David Nilsen moved to accept Mr. Howard's 
resignation from the board.  Luanne Uhl seconded the motion.  Motion carried. Mr. Howard was 
on the Board for 16 years.  He is loved and will be greatly missed by the Staff and Directors.  
Chris Cummings asked the Board if they wanted to vote in any new member for the Board.  Mr. 
Nilsen suggested that any nomination for a Board member should be held at the Annual Meeting.  
No additional motion was needed at this time.    
 
Scheduled Meeting:  The next Regular Board of Directors Meeting will be held on November 
19, 2020, via Zoom.   
 
Closed Session – Employee Evaluation 
 
Adjournment:   David Nilsen moved to adjournment the meeting.  Luanne Uhl seconded the 
motion.  Motion carried.  The Regular Board of Directors Meeting of October 15, 2020, was 
adjourned at 7:30 pm.   
 
Respectfully Submitted,  
 
 
 
 
David Nilsen 
Board Director  
Sheep Creek Water Company 
  
  
 
  

 
 

 





9,000

11,000

18,687$                  

48,480$                  

63,815$                  

58,175$                  

3,000

13,000

13,000

37,270$                  

20,750$                  

22,931$                  

13,500 3,250

2,500 3,500

1,500 1,750

1,750 1,800

SHEEP CREEK WATER COMPANY 
OPERATIONS BUDGET 2021 INCOME

Total Monthly 
Usage Income

September

August

July

June

May

April

PROJECTED INCOME

Month

March

February

January

7,250

13,500 3,250 7,500 65,395$                  

5,000

12,000 2,750 6,750

26,587$                  

2 Nonpayment

Reconnects per Month

2

11,500 2,000 3,750

3,0009,000 1,500

5.00$           

Monthly Service Charge Income- Operating

Monthly Service Charge Income- CoBank (Well 11) 

$18

Estimated Annually Transfer Income

$2,37611

Standard Fee Nonpayment Fee

1190

October

1,250 21,215$                  

36,370$                  

28,650$                  

December

November

Average Active Services 1190 Service Charge 71,400.00$            

8,500

Monthly Water Use Income
Projected Monthly Usage (HCF)

Average Active Services

Estimated Transfers per Month

Average per Month- 3 Estimated Annual Lost Certificate Fee Income

Service Charge
$55.00

Meters Months
0

Average Usage $3.85 HCF
0

Tier 1       
Rate .50

Tier 2       
Rate 3.46

8,500 1,250 2,850

8,500 1,250 1,600

Tier 3       
Rate 6.32

2,000

$45 $540

Stock Transfers

Reconnect Fees

Construction Meters

Penalties/Late Fees

Lost Certificate Fee

Service Charge 55.00$         785,400.00$         

Average per Month- 12
$325 $3,900

Estimated Annual Penalties/Late Fees Income

Total
$0.000

Estimated Reconnect Income

$2,880$60

Transfer Fee

$60 Standard



Water Usage- Tier 3- $6.32 $295,460 $288,508 $282,504 $335,913

2019 Actual

$784,080 $783,970

$61,456

$71,270

$87,365

PROJECTED INCOME CONTINUED

$60,550

Total Projected Annual Operating Income

Meter Service Charge $785,400

2019 
Budget

$71,700 $0

$65,500Water Usage- Tier 1- $0.50

$123,231Water Usage- Tier 2- $3.46

$2,376 $1,368

$0

SHEEP CREEK WATER COMPANY 
OPERATIONS BUDGET 2021 INCOME

$1,314,821

$6,780

2021 Budget
2020 

Budget

$133,902 $159,160

$65,000

Total Operations Income

$71,400Well 11 Loan- $5.00 Meter Srvice Charge

$788,700

Lost Certificate Fee

Construction Meters

Assessment Acct 124,227.50$         Base Rate Increase for CoBank Loan Payments, Tier 3- $1.13 per HCF

$106,890$366,262 $7,667 $99,223
CoBank - Refinanced Shareholder 
Loans (4 year term) 7/2020 - 7/2024    
$5.00 Meter Service Charge plus Tier 3

Penalties/Late Fees/ Reconnect Fees

$0

$540

Income based on $2 per hcf of Tier 3 for Capitol Upgrades

Income based on .25 per hcf for Tier 1; $0.50 per hcf for Tier 2&3

Estimated Annual Reserve Account Transfers

Capitol Improvement

$1,353,056 $1,300,440 $1,377,644

93,500.00$           

45,000.00$           

57,062.50$           

System Upgrade Acct

Well Acct (Maintenance) 

$2,376 $2,376

Total Outstanding Loans- 2021 Assessment Account

Annual 
Principal

$540 $435.00

$0 $0

Remaining 
Balance

Annual 
Interest

Total Annual  
Loan Payments

$6,780 $6,780

$540

Stock Transfers

Income based on $3,750 per month from Service Charge for System 
Replacement

Income based on usage from Well #11 water for MWA Replacement 
Water Fees

Well Acct (MWA Fees) 36,865.00$           



1.
2.
3.
4.
5.
6.
7.
8.
9.

1. System repairs and maintenance remain high due to increasing materials cost and higher
number of meters being replaced.

2.
3.
4.
5.
6.
7.
8.
9.

$1.46 per hcf of Tier 2 will transfer the Well Account for Mojave Water Agency- Water Replacement Fees.

MWA Replacement Fees 2019/2020- $665.50 per acre foot

Water quality and treatment expenses will remain increased due to additional pumping hours on the wells.

Increase in Legal Fess with continued State Compliance Order.

Notes- Expenses

Well Electrical to remain higher due to increased run time on wells and Well 11 usage.
Increase in Engineering due to State Compliance Order.

COLA reduced to $0.25 approximately 1%.

Sub contract labor, diesel fuel decreased due to Source Capacity Project on temporay hold.
Actual 2020 cost will not be available until January 2021.

SHEEP CREEK WATER COMPANY 
OPERATIONS BUDGET 2021

NOTES

Notes- Income
Usage estimates are based on actual 2019 & 2020 usage with current allotments. 

$2.00 per hcf from Tier 3 to be transferred to Capitol Improvement Account.
$45,000 from Meter Base Rate to be used and transferred to System Upgrade Account.

$1.13 per hcf of Tier 3 will transfer to Assessment Account.  Portion used for CoBank- Well 11 Loan Payment.

No construction meter usage is planned due to low production and the need to conserve water.
Additional $5 Base Rate increase for CoBank- Well #11 Loan Payment.
No construction water planned due to the SWRCB Building Moratorium.

$0.25 per hcf of water sold to be transferred to the Well Account for well maintenance.



    Equipment Payment $4,140 $16,595 $16,800 $16,672.64 ($78)
$3,162 

    Fuel- Diesel $8,000 $10,000 $18,555 $6,749.33 $3,251 
    Fuel- Gasoline $10,000 $12,000 $13,000 $8,838.20 

SHEEP CREEK WATER COMPANY 
OPERATIONS BUDGET 2021 

PRODUCTION & DISTIRBUTION

OVER / 
UNDER 

FIELD CREW
ACCOUNT 

BUDGET 
2021

BUDGET 
2020

BUDGET 
2019

$3,571 
    Overtime $16,909 $16,400 $15,300 $10,369.88 $6,030 
    Salaries

$13,107 $11,653.82 

$179,759 $173,657 $153,565 $170,086.20 

      SER/SEP-Retirement $13,767 $1,546 $13,200 
$127 

    Emergency Phone $520 $520 $520 $527.00 ($7)
    Uniforms, Hats $1,800 $1,800 $1,500 $1,673.42 

$220 
    Training/Certs $1,200 $1,200 $1,200 $250.00 $950 
    Emergency Pager $0 $330 $330 $110.44 

    Truck Payment $22,000 $17,535 $17,525 $17,213.57 $321 
TRUCK & EQUIPMENT

$356 
    Rprs & Maint.- Auto $7,000 $6,500 $8,850 $5,811.60 $688 
    Registration- DMV $3,200 $3,500 $3,900 $3,144.00 

$3,683 

    Waste- Hazmat $500 $500 $750 $349.40 $151 
    Equipment Rental $4,500 $4,500 $18,500 $0.00 $4,500 
    Rprs & Maint.- Equip $5,000 $4,500 $11,280 $816.62 

    Rprs & Maint- Lines $12,000 $10,000 $12,000 $6,660.67 $3,339 
DISTRIBUTION SYSTEM

$25,000 $30,456.68 ($5,457)
$6,500 $9,210.66 ($2,711)

    Rprs & Maint- Meters $25,000 $25,000 
    Rprs & Maint- CLA-VAL $3,000 $4,500 
    Rprs & Maint- System $8,500 $8,500 $8,500 $6,937.59 $1,562 

$1,546 
    Supplies- General $3,500 $4,000 $4,000 $2,921.95 $1,078 
    Shop Equipment $2,500 $2,500 $3,500 $953.79 

$1,500 

County Waste Fees $300 $300 $300 $0.00 $300 
Cross Connection Control $100 $100 $100 $0.00 $100 
    Supplies- Inventory $1,500 $1,500 $1,500 $0.00 

$1,200 
Damages- Personnel $250 $250 $250 $0.00 $250 
Contract Services $1,200 $1,200 $1,200 $0.00 

($136)
Small Tools $1,200 $1,200 $1,200 $907.36 $293 
Safety Equipment $450 $450 $450 $585.76 

$1,300 
Sub Contract Labor $7,500 $10,000 $15,000 $300.00 $9,700 
State Health Fees $7,000 $8,000 $10,000 $6,700.00 

$100 

Water Quality Treatment $6,500 $6,500 $10,500 $6,400.59 $99 

Travel Reimbursement $100 $100 $100 $0.00 
Water Conservation $500 $500 $6,000 $0.00 $500 

Water Quality Maint/Samp $6,500 $6,500 $8,500 $16,600.99 

2019 Actual 
(Estimate)

$32,935 Prod./Dist. Total $365,895 $375,837 $407,282 $342,902.16 

($10,101)



     Capitol Improvement $93,500 $91,300 $89,400 $105,598.30 ($14,298)

Miscellaneous
N.S.F Checks

ACCOUNT 

      Work Comp.

      Safety/OT- Dinner/Lunch

OFFICE  

      Other

      Annual/Regular Meetings

$800 $1,200 

Meeting/Conferences

Accounting
Advertising
Bank Charges
Contributions
Copier- Lease
Credit Card Fees
Dues/Subscriptions
Equipment Rentals

Legal- General
Legal- AVL/MWA/SWRCB
Licenses/Permits
Medical Supplies

Employees
      Employee Gifts

      Employee of Year
Engineering- General
INSURANCE
      General
      Medical- Employee
      Medical- Board

      Management
      Office

$500 $500 $1,000 $0.00 $500 
$767.89 $32 $800 

$1,500 $1,500 $500 $600.00 $900 

$600 $600 $600 $198.26 $402 
$600 $945.24 ($345)$1,000 $600 

$0 
$250 $250 $250 $633.99 ($384)

$2,000 $2,000 $880.16 $1,120 $2,000 
$12,000 $25,000 

$20,000 $823.75 $19,176 
$17,320.72 $7,679 

$20,000 $20,000 
$5,000 

$100 $100 $100 $0.00 $100 
$12,000 $12,000 $15,000 $12,803.00 ($803)
$18,142 
$86,023 
$28,200 $28,200 $27,500 $26,045.00 $2,155 

$85,590.00 
$26,271.19 

$86,023 
$26,993 

$81,978 
$26,993 

$433 
$722 

$25,000 $15,000 $22,000 $20,000.00 ($5,000)
$250 $250 $350 $300.00 ($50)

$1,000 $1,000 $950 $0.00 $1,000 
$2,400 $2,400 $2,400 $2,400.00 $0 

$200 $200 $0.00 $200 
$2,500 $2,500 $3,500 $2,057.05 $443 

$294.98 $5 

$5,500 $5,500 $7,000 $11,079.71 ($5,580)
$2,400 $2,500 $2,400 $2,489.13 $11 

SHEEP CREEK WATER COMPANY 
OPERATIONS BUDGET 2021 

ADMINISTRATION

BUDGET 
2020

BUDGET 
2019

OVER / 
UNDER BUDGET 2021

$6,600 $6,600 $7,000 $10,800.00 

$200 

($4,200)

2019 Actual 
(Estimate)

$150 $250 $250 $90.00 $160 

$250 $500 $750 $0.00 $500 
$300 

     System Upgrade Acct $45,000 $45,000 $45,000 $45,000.00 $0 

$300 $300 

Account Transfers
     Assessment Acct $124,228 $123,165 $89,400 $130,943.04 ($7,778)

     Well Acct (Maintenance) $68,750 $72,450 $63,451 $86,704.78 ($14,255)
     Well Acct (MWA Fees) $36,865 $56,502 $132,432 $35,237.10 $21,265 



$659.00 $1 

$250 $250 $250 

OUTSIDE SERVICES

      SER/SEP-Retirement
      Overtime- Office $2,343 $2,165 $2,165 
      Office

Postage
SALARIES

      CR&R-Trash

      Management

$2,000 $2,000 $2,000 $0.00 $2,000 

$660 $660 $1,200 

$53,503 
$32,935 

$986,361 $933,851 $965,792.51 $20,568 
$375,837 $407,282 $342,902.16 

$100 $100 $100 $0.00 $100 

$1,800 $2,250 

$3,000 

$963,180 

$50 $50 $50 

$3,000 

Prod./Dist. Total

      Turner Security

      Natural Gas

$1,362,198 $1,341,133 $1,329,075 
$1,377,644.00 

$365,895 

$3,000 

$1,308,694.67 

$405.15 

ACCOUNT 

Rprs & Maint- Office

      TNN- Computer/Phone

OFFICE SUPPLIES
      Billing

      Copier

      Payroll Supplies

      Dig Alert- USA's

      General

      Computer

Rprs & Maint- Equip
Replacement- Equip
TAXES
      Payroll
      Payroll Withheld
      Property
      Corporate
Telephone/Race
Theft Losses
Training
Travel Reimbursement

Administration Total

Operations Income

UTILITES
      Electric- Wells
      Electric- General

Total Operations

$3,056.10 ($56)
$70,000 $60,000 $85,000 $69,644.91 ($9,645)

$450 $450 $450 

$1,314,821 $1,353,056 $1,300,440 $24,588 

$0.00 

$0.00 $0 

$50 

$45 

$1,800 $6,000 $5,500 $4,281.62 $1,718 
$0 $0 $0 

$800.00 $0 $800 $800 $800 
$17,000 $10,000 $8,000 $16,802.75 ($6,803)

($63,000) ($60,500) ($56,000) ($63,993.51) $3,494 

$2,500 $4,000 $1,292.88 $1,207 

$88,000 $93,000 $88,000 

$0.00 $250 

$86,862.13 $6,138 
$42,800 $43,300 $40,800 $40,471.37 $2,829 

$2,500 

$1,500 $1,955.16 $295 

OVER / 
UNDER BUDGET 2021

BUDGET 
2020

BUDGET 
2019

SHEEP CREEK WATER COMPANY 
OPERATIONS BUDGET 2021 

ADMINISTRATION

      Printing $1,500 $1,500 $2,000 $147.83 $1,352 
($106)$2,442 $2,300 $2,150 $2,406.00 

$12,840 

$91,875 $89,997 $87,302 $87,758.00 $2,239 
$102,343 $100,556 $94,690 $100,582.00 ($26)

$191.76 $1,973 
$13,300 $1,148.90 $13,759 $12,151 

$6,250 $4,500 $5,000 $5,603.75 ($1,104)

2019 Actual 
(Estimate)

$8,500 $9,500 $11,000 $7,108.67 $2,391 

$3,000 $3,000 $3,000 $2,226.25 $774 

$2,500 $2,500 $2,500 $2,101.30 $399 
$2,500 $1,500 $3,500 $1,621.99 ($122)

$500 $1,250 $1,250 $208.74 $1,041 

$1,000 $2,500 $1,000 $5,826.49 ($3,326)
      Bookkeeping $1,250 $1,250 $1,500 $1,221.35 $29 




























	Agenda 11-19-2020 with Packet.pdf
	Agenda 11-19-2020.pdf
	Minutes 10-15-2020.pdf
	DOC006.pdf

	Operating Budget 2021.pdf
	Income 1
	Income 2
	Notes
	Prod. & Dist. 1
	Administration 1

	Agenda 11-19-2020 with Packet
	DOC006




